












































 STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
To: Planning Board          Date: November 2, 2016 
From: Colleen P. Mailloux, AICP, Town Planner  
 John R. Trottier, PE, Assist. Dir. Of DPW   

            
Application: Application Acceptance and Public Hearing for formal review of a subdivision of 

one lot into five, Map 12 Lot 5, Alexander Road and Litchfield Road, Zoned AR-1, 
Holm Family Revocable Trust (Owner), Gerry Beique (Applicant). 

  

 Completeness: The Board accepted this application as complete on October 5, 2016. 
  

 Waivers: The Applicant has requested the following waiver to the Subdivision 
Regulations: 
  

1. The Applicant is requesting a waiver to Item VI.24 of the Subdivision Application 
Checklist requiring topography be shown over all subject parcels.  The plan does 
not provide topography over the western portion of the proposed Lot 5-4.  Staff 
recommends granting the waiver as the Applicant has provided sufficient HISS 
mapping per Section 3.10 of the regulations to substantiate a single lot. 
 

Board Action Required:  The Board approved the requested waiver on October 5, 
2016. 

 

 Recommendation:  Based on the information available to date, Staff recommends that 
the Planning Board APPROVE this application with the Notice of Decision to read 
substantially as follows: 

 

Board Action Required:  Motion to approve the subdivision at 8 Alexander Road 
and Litchfield Road from one lot into five, Map 12 Lot 5, Zoned AR-1, Holm Family 
Revocable Trust (Owner), Gerry Bieque (Applicant), in accordance with plans 
prepared by Edward N. Hebert Associates, Inc., dated November 2015, last revised 
October 17, 2016, with the precedent conditions to be fulfilled within two (2) years 
of the approval and prior to plan signature and subsequent conditions of approval 
to be fulfilled as noted in the staff memorandum, dated November 2, 2016: 

 
“Applicant”, herein, refers to the property owner, business owner, or organization submitting 
this application and to his/its agents, successors, and assigns. 
 
PRECEDENT CONDITIONS 
 
All of the precedent conditions below must be met by the Applicant, at the expense of the 
Applicant, prior to certification of the plans by the Planning Board.  Certification of the plans is 
required prior to commencement of any site work, any construction on the site or issuance of a 
building permit. 
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1.  The Applicant shall address all appropriate items from the Planning & Economic 
Development Department/Department of Public Works & Engineering/Stantec review 
memo dated November 2, 2016. 

2. The Applicant shall provide the Owner’s signature(s) on the plans. 
 

3. Executed slope and drainage easements shall be provided for recording at the RCRD. 
 

4. The Applicant shall provide a digital copy of the complete final plan to the Town prior to 
plan signature by the Planning Board in accordance with Section 2.05.n of the 
Subdivision Regulations. 
 

5. The Applicant shall provide a check for $25 (made payable to the Rockingham County 
Registry of Deeds) for LCHIP. 
 

6. The Applicant shall note all general and subsequent conditions on the plans. 
 

7. Third-party review fees shall be paid within 30 days of conditional site plan approval. 
 

8. Financial guarantee be provided to the satisfaction of the Department of Public Works 
and Engineering. 
 

9. Final engineering review. 
 
PLEASE NOTE –  If these conditions are not met within two (2) years of the meeting at which 
the Planning Board grants approval, the Board’s approval will be considered to have lapsed and 
re-submission of the application will be required.  See RSA 674:39 on vesting. 
 
GENERAL AND SUBSEQUENT CONDITIONS 
 
All of the conditions below are attached to this approval. 
 

1. No construction or site work for the subdivision may be undertaken until a pre-
construction meeting with Town staff has taken place, filing of an NPDES – EPA Permit 
(if required), and posting of the site-restoration financial guaranty with the Town.  
Contact the Department of Public Works to arrange the pre-construction meeting. 
 

2. The project must be built and executed as specified in the approved application package 
unless modifications are approved by the Planning Department & Department of Public 
Works, or, if Staff deems applicable, the Planning Board. 
 

3. All of the documentation submitted in the application package by the applicant and any 
requirements imposed by other agencies are part of this approval unless otherwise 
updated, revised, clarified in some manner, or superseded in full or in part. In the case 
of conflicting information between documents, the most recent documentation and this 
notice herein shall generally be determining. 
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4. It is the responsibility of the applicant to obtain all other local, state, and federal 
permits, licenses, and approvals which may be required as part of this project (that were 
not received prior to certification of the plans). Contact the Building Division at 
extension 115 regarding building permits. 
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MEMORANDUM 
 

To:      Planning Board         Date:    November 2, 2016 

 

From:   Planning and Economic Development               Re: Map 12  Lot 5 

          Department of Public Works & Engineering        Subdivision Plan 

 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc.    Alexander & Litchfield Roads 

             

        Owners: Holm Family Revocable Trust    

        Applicant: Gerry Beique 

                

This project is continued from the October 5, 2016 Planning Board meeting at which the subdivision 

application was accepted as complete.  The Board also granted the waiver request for 

topography on lot 5-4 at the October 5, 2016 meeting.  The Applicant submitted revised plans and 

information and we offer the following comments: 

    

Design Review Items: 

 

1. We recommend the Applicant address the following on the revised Improvement Plans: 

a. The plans do not address when the proposed detention basin on lot 5-4 would be 

constructed (before a CO on any lot?) and who is responsible for future operation, 

inspection and maintenance of the basin in perpetuity (home owner’s association?).  

We recommend that additional notes be placed on sheet one to clarify the 

ownership and maintenance responsibilities of the detention basin.    In addition, we 

recommend additional notes be placed on sheet 4 relative to the basin 

construction time table.  Also, we recommend that an Operations and Maintenance 

manual be prepared for the basin acceptable to the Town.  The project design 

should be updated accordingly acceptable to the Town. We recommend that the 

Applicant discuss the proposed design and project information to be included on 

the plans and deeds with the Town. 

b. It is unclear from the grading plan – sheet 4- that the top of embankment elevation 

at 266.4 is maintained along the entirety of the berm with the various labels of 266.2 

and 266 indicated.  Please clarify acceptable to the Town. 

c. The Applicant’s revised design indicates the existing catch basin along Alexander 

Road will be replaced with a new one on sheet 4.  In addition, a new catch basin 

will be installed northerly of the existing catch basin with a new 12” pipe to the 

existing replaced basin.  Please update the new pipe size to be 15” minimum in 

compliance with section 3.08.g.1 of the regulations. 

d. We recommend that the Applicant clarify when the proposed improvements along 

Alexander Road will occur (prior to CO?) in the notes shown on sheet 4 acceptable 

to the Town.   

e. The revised detention basin on sheet 4 appears to include a low flow outlet structure, 

but the device is not labeled.  Please update the plan and reference the detail on 

sheet 11 and typical section on sheet 12 for proper construction. 

f. We recommend that the improvement plans indicate temporary erosion control 

measures for the proposed swales and catch basins as required by the regulations. 

  

2. We recommend that the Applicant address the following relative to the revised Drainage 

Analysis Report:  

a. The revised detention basin analysis indicates the low flow outlet structure top of wall 

elevation of 266.4  that is the same elevation as the top of basin embankment and 

would not operate as an outlet overflow device as intended by the Town’s typical 

detail.  We note that the 50-year storm event has peak pond elevation of 265.3.  We 

recommend that the top of wall for the outlet structure be at elevation 265.4 and 

this would provide a one foot elevation difference from the top of embankment and 
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operate as an outlet overflow device consistent with the intent of the Town’s typical 

outlet structure.  We recommend that the Applicant update the detail on sheet 11 

and the analysis accordingly.  

b. The Applicant’s design does not address the impacts to all abutting lots as required 

per section 3.08.b.3 of the regulations and item X.3.c of the checklist.  We note that 

abutting lots 4, 4-2, 4-3, 4-4, 4-6, 7, 7-1, 7-2 & 7-3 are not addressed in the updated 

report as previously requested.  We recommend a summary table be provided in 

the report narrative that indicates the pre- and post-development impacts to each 

abutting lot and indicates no increase in runoff in accordance with the regulations is 

achieved as typically required by the Town. 

c. The pre- and post-development plans do not include the area for each 

subcatchment per section 3.08.b.7 and 8 of the regulations.  Please update the 

plans accordingly.     

 

3. We recommend that the Applicant provide the Owner’s signature on the final plans. 

 

4. We recommend the Applicant verify the DRC comments for the project are adequately 

addressed as applicable: 

a. Please verify the comments of Planning Department have been adequately addressed 

with the Planning Department. 
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